6-1976

Digest of the Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine (June 1976)

Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

Follow this and additional works at: http://digitalcommons.pcom.edu/digest

Part of the Medical Education Commons, and the Osteopathic Medicine and Osteopathy Commons

Recommended Citation

http://digitalcommons.pcom.edu/digest/78

This Book is brought to you for free and open access by DigitalCommons@PCOM. It has been accepted for inclusion in Digest by an authorized administrator of DigitalCommons@PCOM. For more information, please contact library@pcom.edu.
The Digest
of Philadelphia College
of Osteopathic Medicine

The Philadelphia Story...
... A PLEDGE FOR TOMORROW

June '76
By now, the Alumni and friends of Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine have received a copy of the first President’s Report. This report is designed to give an overview of our activities and areas of development during the past two years as well as our plans and goals for the future.

Very shortly, a College fund appeal will be initiated. The theme of our campaign is “The Philadelphia Story—A Pledge For Tomorrow.” If we are to achieve the goal we have set “to be the finest osteopathic college in the country” it is essential to have the loyalty and support of each Alumnus.

PCOM helped you to reach your goal. Now we need your help to achieve ours.

Thomas W. Lowland
More than 350 Alumni attending the PCOM luncheon at the Eastern Regional Osteopathic Convention on May 1 heard Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, Jr., president, announce plans for an annual college fund. The program will be launched in July, 1976 with the theme "THE PHILADELPHIA STORY — A PLEDGE FOR TOMORROW."

Following an update of recent developments at the College, Dr. Rowland discussed the need for a development program not only for future expansion but for basic maintenance as well. In the area of basic maintenance, many Alumni were surprised to learn that PCOM pays the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania an annual rent on Evans Hall in the amount of $300,000.

The campaign, which will be launched with the publication of the first President's Report in the very near future, has been a goal of the College for some time. Dan Santillo, the new assistant to Paul Gebert, executive director of the Alumni Association, was appointed with the specific goal of initiating the fund drive.

And the Alumni Association has concurred with the need and the goal. At the January meeting of the Alumni Board of Directors, a resolution was passed "to cooperate fully with the development committee of the College and to offer assistance in the fund raising program."

The announcement was made during a weekend of scientific advancement and social camaraderie. The Eastern Regional Osteopathic Convention is the largest osteopathic medical conclave in the country, held annually for D.O.'s from Pennsylvania, New Jersey and New York.

The 1976 convention was held at the Cherry Hill Hyatt House in New Jersey with the theme "A Return to the Basics with Practical Application." Ronald Goldberg, D.O., '59, Berlin, N.J. served as general chairman of the fifth annual EROC.


Dr. Rowland announces the PHILADELPHIA STORY.

Attending PCOM's Alumni luncheon at EROC were (l-r) Carol Fox, director of admissions and registrar; Dr. Sherwood Mercer, vice president for educational affairs; Dr. Mortimer Sullivan '21, member of the board of trustees; Dr. James Christian '31, East Orange, N. J. and Dan Santillo, assistant to the executive director of the Alumni Association. Dr. Spencer Bradford '42, assistant dean for academic affairs is seated with his back to the camera.
The Class of 1976—PCOM's largest, 182 osteopathic physicians, 169 men and 13 women—were graduated in pomp and ceremony and the very spirit of America on June 6, 1976. The Bicentennial year, the Bicentennial city and the Academy of Music, itself a national landmark, provided a historic background.

The stage and the program featured red, white and blue as faculty marshalls J. Ernest Leuzinger, D.O., '24, emeritus professor and former chairman of EENT.
and Samuel Caruso, D.O., '47, professor and chairman of pediatrics, led the graduates into the Academy, resplendent in its traditional red and gold.

Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, president, welcomed the class, the honorary degree recipient and the guests "whose sacrifice and support made possible the honors bestowed today." He spoke of freedom, the American dream made possible 200 years ago. This day, he spoke of the freedom "to practice osteopathic medicine and the ... even stronger responsibility that every freedom brings with it."

An American patriot and dedicated public servant Emilio Quincy Daddario, received the honorary degree of doctor of laws, conferred by Judge J. Sydney Hoffman, chairman of the board of trustees. Dr. Daddario is an attorney, Congressman, major force in the shaping of national policy in science, director of the nation's office of technology assessment and president-elect of the world's largest and most distinguished scientific society—the American Association for the Advancement of Science.

In his address to the graduates, Dr. Daddario paid tribute to Philadelphia, "a city where particular branches of science ... are advantageously taught" as attested to by no less a towering American figure than Thomas Jefferson in a letter to Dr. Caspar Wistar in 1807. He saluted PCOM as a "distinguished school set in an outstanding city . . . with cur-
President Rowland delivered the benediction with a prayer written by General George Washington.

"Almighty God, we make our earnest prayer that thou wilt keep the United States in Thy holy protection, that thou wilt incline the hearts of the citizens to cultivate the spirit of obedience to government and to entertain a brotherly affection and love for one another and for their fellow citizens of the United States at large."

As Paul T. Lloyd, D.O., emeritus professor of radiology and faculty marshall of the procession, retrieved the mace, symbol of college authority, and escorted PCOM's president from the stage, the assemblage joined in singing America, the Beautiful, closing the historic 1976 Commencement.

Dr. D. Douglas Gilbert, an ordained minister of the United Presbyterian Church, receives his diploma from Dr. Rowland.

Curriculum requirements . . . far beyond those of the average medical school." His tribute was also directed to the tradition and significant contribution of osteopathic medicine in meeting the nation's medical manpower needs. (See page ?? for the complete text.)

Degrees of master of science were conferred upon Bernard C. McDonnell, D.O., '72, in otorhinolaryngology; Richard M. Purse, D.O., '72, radiology and John P. Simelaro, D.O., '72, internal medicine.

The final moments of Commencement were a traditional departure from the formal format. This warm contribution by Dr. Sherwood Mercer as "part of the great American folk tradition" was devoted to the salutation of those who made possible the education of the graduates—their parents, their wives and husbands and their children. Married members of the Class of 1976 numbered 101 with a total of 89 children.

Elizabeth-Ann Ruberg is the first member of a PCOM graduating class to have both parents practicing D.O.'s. The family portrait includes (l-r) front row T. Louise Riddell D.O., mother of the graduate, Elizabeth Ann D.O. and Raymond L. Ruberg D.O., PCOM's chairman of the division of neurologic surgery. In the back row are Mr. and Mrs. Raymond L. Ruberg Jr. Raymond Jr. is a third-year student.
PCOM officials spend a few informal moments with the honorary degree recipient prior to the ceremony. (1-r) Dr. Sherwood R. Mercer, vice-president for educational affairs; Dr. Emilio Daddario, Commencement speaker; Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, Jr., president; Judge J. Sidney Hoffman, chairman of the board of trustees; Dr. Robert W. England, dean.

Col. Frank B. Falbey, chief of medical services at the USAF Hospital in Zaragoza, Spain, flew to Philadelphia to attend the graduation of his son Robert. Col. Falbey is a former member of the College faculty.

The two Doctors Tomei exchange greetings at Commencement. Ralph J. Tomei D.O. (left) is chairman of the division of endocrinology and metabolism and Ralph Paul Tomei (right) is a member of the Class of 1976.
President Rowland, members of the Board of Trustees, members of the faculty, graduates, their families and friends. To have been invited to take part in this 1976 commencement of the Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine is a distinct honor. For this is a distinguished school in an outstanding city. No less a towering American figure than Thomas Jefferson attested to that in June of 1807 when he wrote to a Dr. Wistar and said... "there are particular branches of science which are not so advantageously taught anywhere in the United States as in Philadelphia. The garden at Woodlands for Botany, Mr. Peall's Museum for Natural History, your Medical School for Anatomy, and the able professors in all of them give advantage not to be found elsewhere."

He was at that time seeking Dr. Wistar's advice about his grandson's education and proposed to send him to Philadelphia "to attend schools of Botany, Natural History, Anatomy, and perhaps Surgery; but not Medicine." The educational possibilities were apparently compelling enough to overcome Mr. Jefferson's aversion to big cities. "I am not a friend to placing young men in populous cities, because they acquire habits and partialities which do not contribute to the happiness of their after life," he said in that same letter. But not of medicine in which he felt that outside of the well known diseases presumption was too often substituted for knowledge. He wished for "an abandonment of hypothesis for sober facts, the first degree of values set on clinical observation and the lowest on visionary theories."

He had great faith that some of the diseases not then understood would in time become known but felt that "the only sure foundations of medicine are, an intimate knowledge of the human body and observations on the effects of medical substance on that. The anatomical and clinical schools, therefore," he went on to say, "are those in which the young physician should be formed."

The long tradition of osteopathic medicine in this country and the very significant contribution it has made to meeting the Nation's medical manpower needs fall well within the scope of Mr. Jefferson's concern. For osteopathic medicine has become so well recognized that the education of osteopathic physicians are fully recognized in federal programs and your status is positively reflected in state licensing reforms and regulations.

Recognition and opportunity go hand in hand. For because of the double barred concerns we all have about rising costs of health care and their quality and effectiveness, osteopathic medicine now commands a central role for charting a modern course for health practitioners—no matter what their educational backgrounds. That course, which gives emphasis to primary patient care and the practice of preventive medicine has always been, in fact, a major characteristic of osteopathic schools. The term "health maintenance" which has only recently come into currency in health planning has long been the osteopathic physician's approach to medical practice.

Indeed, that was what Thomas Jefferson was concerned about almost two hundred years ago for even then he urged that doctors be "quiet spectators of the operation of nature, giving his patient fair play by a well regulated regimen and by all the aid they can derive from the excitement of good spirits and hope." It is interesting on that very account to note that your curriculum requirements of 42 weeks of primary and ambulatory care are far beyond that of the average medical school.

This should be an exciting time to begin your life's work. The nation's medical schools, cognizant of the need for primary physicians, are adjusting their curricula accordingly. In that process there is the philosophical reaching for a program of health care which seeks a better balance between basic efforts to keep people as healthy as possible and those complex, highly specialized efforts on behalf of people already beset by a disease which might have been either preventable or amenable to treatment at an earlier and less serious stage. The dialogue that is taking place will not be an easy one to reconcile for it concerns the priorities that we as a nation assign to alternative approaches to safeguard and improve the overall health of our people.

It is three pronged, for it seeks answers as to how we should apply our resources to maintain health, prevent disease, and apply very expensive systems to prolonging the lives of those suffering serious illness or injury. Because we are dealing with a structure as complicated and unknown as the human body and an issue so sacred as human life, the remedy will not be easily derived. But to what better task could you engage yourself than to help bring balance to this array.

If this adventure on which you are embarked is a great and exciting one, you can also expect that it will be demanding. The tasks that lie ahead will be far more difficult than those tasks of learning which have brought to you the recognition of this day of graduation and those involving internship, residency and research that must be considered as a part of your special education. For in those tasks that you must strive to acquire a wisdom of no common order—a wisdom whereby knowledge will not be accumulated for its own sake—or merely for the sake of your own profession—but rather with the aim of improving our nation's chances of accomplishing its democratic goals and objectives—and even its hopes. All societies seem to give rare precedence and privilege to learned men and women—but nowhere does that carry with it a more important duty than in a democracy such as ours. For we rely so much upon wisdom of choice and broad educational opportunities to determine the course of our endeavors, rather than to have decisions imposed by autocratic governmental edict.

It is easy enough to identify a problem—such as that of health care to which I have already referred—once they have emerged as issues which excite public awareness and concern. Yet it is exceedingly difficult to dispassionately appraise the bits and pieces, the gradual steps, the individual decisions and the high emotion which led to the development of the problem. If you are to use your knowledge—not as an end in itself—but to meet these larger goals of our society, you will have to acquire the wisdom necessary to its proper application. There are decisions that must be exposed to the light of public dialogue—and that dialogue must include not just the scientific and technical potentialities that stem from our knowledge—but the moral and ethical judgments which so importantly determine the goals our society wishes to achieve.

There is, then, extra importance attached to careers such as the ones upon which you are preparing to embark for your profession carries with it extra obligations beyond those immediate objectives of the special education you have received.
Honorary Degree Recipient

Dr. Emilio Quincy Daddario, an attorney, former Congressman from Connecticut and president-elect of the American Association for the Advancement of Science, has been a leader in developing national science and health policies. He is currently director of the Office of Technology Assessment, U.S. Congress, a post he has held since 1973.

A strong proponent of federal support of scientific activity, Dr. Daddario was a member of the U.S. House of Representatives from 1959 to 1970. During that time he served on the House Committee on Science and Astronautics; was chairman of the Subcommittee on Science, Research and Development; was a member of the Manned Space Flight Committee; and chairman of the Special Subcommittee on Patents and Scientific Inventions.

When he retired from Congress, Science Magazine described Daddario as a "dispassionate, disinterested friend." "It can be reasonably argued," the magazine said, "that in befriending the scientific community, Daddario was engaging in a rare act of political altruism and public service, for it is hard to see what he himself got out of it politically, in Congress, or among his constituents."

Daddario did not have a "quasi-mystical, uncritical faith in research," Science said, but instead attempted to make a "cool assessment of its place in national life."

A graduate of Wesleyan University, Dr. Daddario received an LL.B. degree from University of Connecticut Law School in 1942. He earned his tuition by playing professional football with the now-defunct Hartford Blues and Providence Steamrollers.

During World War II, he served as an army captain in the Office of Strategic Services (OSS), Mediterranean Theatre, and was awarded the U.S. Legion of Merit and the Italian Medaglia d'Argento.

Following the war he entered the political arena in Connecticut and was elected Mayor of Middletown, Conn., and Judge of Middletown Municipal Court. From 1952-1973 he was senior partner of the law firm of Daddario, Slitt, Jacobs & Sullivan in Hartford, Conn.

After leaving Congress, Dr. Daddario became senior vice-president, Gulf and Western Precision Engineering Group, Gulf and Western Industries, Inc.

Dr. Daddario, who has always been active in academic affairs, is a member of the board of trustees, Wesleyan University. He has also been a member of the faculty at Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT), Pollack lecturer at Harvard University and Marganeau Lecturer at Hartwick College.

He holds honorary degrees from Wesleyan University (doctor of science) and from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute (doctor of laws).

Among his recent awards are the National Academy of Science's National Welfare Medal, 1976, Ralph Coats Roe Award, American Society of Mechanical Engineers in 1974, and the Stevens Institute of Technology Award, 1975.
Awards and accolades for the class of 1976; ovations for retiring faculty members; memorials for those who helped to build the College's future highlighted the warm and nostalgic Commencement dinner on June 5 held in the grand ballroom of the Sheraton Hotel. Nearly 650 persons attended the affair traditionally held the night before Commencement to honor the graduates and the 50-year class.

Honored guests included Dr. and Mrs. Alfred A. Grilli, '48, president of the Alumni Association; Dr. and Mrs. Hymen Kanoff, '52, president of the Pennsylvania Osteopathic Medical Association and Dr. and Mrs. Robert S. Maurer, '62, president of New Jersey Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons.

A brief memorial service paid tribute to members of the faculty and administration who had died during the past year. Those whose past efforts had contributed so much to PCOM's future were Earl H. Gedney, D.O., '26, department of osteopathic principles and practice and department of surgery; Lewis G. Torrieri, D.O., '44, associate in anatomy; John DeAngelis, vice president for financial affairs and treasurer and Harold J. King, financial aid officer.

Judge J. Sydney Hoffman, chairman of the board of trustees urged the new graduates to become involved, concerned citizens. "You have to be a whole person," he stressed. "Knowledge is not enough. "What sick people need most," he said, is "making them feel that you are a friend."

After requesting the assembly to recognize the faculty of PCOM, Dr. Rowland announced the retirements of five long-term faculty members each of whom received a standing ovation. "One of the greatest things anyone can do is to teach," said Dr. Rowland before presenting certificates to the distinguished professors emeriti, who are Dr. Sherwood R. Mercer, dean of the college from 1954 to 1969 and vice president for educational affairs since 1969; Edwin H. Cressman, D.O., '26, professor of an-
Individual awards to outstanding students were presented by Carol Fox, director of admissions (see page 14) and announced by Dean England, who also announced the additions to the faculty (see page 19).

Members of the faculty were cited by the student body for exceptional efforts in teaching. Alan Scott, '78, president of the Student Council, presented the outstanding teacher award to William S. Walters, D.O., chairman of the department of pathology and cited the collective clinical faculty for excellence in teaching. Chairman of the class of 1979 Earl Brinser presented the first-year award for outstanding teaching to James O. Brown, Ph.D., visiting professor of anatomy. Dr. Brown also received an honorary

atom and chairman of the department of dermatology and syphilology — 49 years on the faculty; F. Munro Purse, D.O., '33, clinical professor of pediatrics — 42 years on the faculty; Paul T. Lloyd, D.O., '23, former chairman of the department of radiology and director of cancer education — 52 years on the faculty and A. Aline Swift, D.O., '34, vice chairman of the department of radiology — 26 years on the faculty. (see page 24)

Also honored was Paul Gebert, executive director of the Alumni Association, although illness prevented him from attending.

"'Geb' has played a very important role for hundreds of our graduates," said Dr. Rowland, "and his interest and counsel have meant much to me during the years that we have worked together." Earlier in the day, Dr. Rowland and the Alumni Board of Directors had presented a silver bowl to "Geb" in his hospital room.

Edwin H. Cressman D.O. (left), emeritus professor of anatomy and dermatology and syphilology, and A. Aline Swift D.O. (center), emeritus professor of radiology, received certificates of honor upon their retirement from the faculty. Dr. Swift and Emanuel Fliegelman D.O. (right), associate professor of obstetrics and gynecology received Lindback awards for distinguished teaching.
membership in the Class of 1976.

Lindback scholarships were awarded to Carl G. DiJoseph, '77 and Theodore W. Shively, '78. The Delta Omega scholarship went to Sylvia Ferretti, '77 and the Russell McCaughan scholarship to Nelson P. Kopyt, '79. The Delta Omega award to the woman graduate with the highest average for four years was presented to Lynn E. Talley, '76.

In his remarks to the graduates, Dr. Rowland said, "I am proud of each of you. I expect that each of you will be a good osteopathic physician and know success." Quoting from Winston Churchill, he exhorted "You are needed now more than ever now. Don't be content with things as they are. Accept your responsibilities. Don't take no for an answer. Never submit to failure. Do not be fooled with mere personal success or acceptance."

The evening closed with the distribution of 101 wishbone pins and five tie tacs to the spouses of the graduates in the warm and personal tradition of Dr. and Mrs. Sherwood R. Mercer.

Paul Turner Lloyd D.O., emeritus professor and former chairman of the department of radiology, received a standing ovation as he accepted his certificate of honor. Dr. Lloyd who served as director of the division of oncology, is retiring after 52 years on the faculty.

It was a great night for the Purses. Dr. Richard (left) would receive the master of science degree in radiology the next day and Dr. F. Munro (right) was presented with a certificate of honor upon his retirement from the faculty.

Carol Fox, director of admissions and registrar (second from right) congratulates scholarship winners (l-r) Nelson P. Kopyt '79; Sylvia Ferretti '77; Carl DiJoseph '77 and Theodore W. Shively '78.
Dr. Alfred A. Grilli, president of the Alumni Association, welcomes the graduates into the Association in the person of class chairman Dr. Michael Gallagher.

Dr. Rowland

Dr. William S. Walters (right) chairman of the department of pathology received the Student Council outstanding award some days after the Commencement dinner since he was unable to attend. Alan Scott (left), president, made the presentation at the College.
STUDENT AWARDS — 1976

THE DEAN'S AWARD
To that member of the graduating class who by his personal and professional conduct and by his contributions to student affairs and to the general program of Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine has been deemed worthy of special citation as a recipient of the Dean's Award:

R. MICHAEL GALLAGHER
TIMOTHY RICHARD YOUNG

THE STUDENT COUNCIL MEMORIAL AWARD
Presented by the Student Council of Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine in memory of those students who passed away before graduating as Osteopathic Physicians: Homer Mackey, Lewis Rossman, D. Neil Grove ... Awarded to that member of the graduating class who attained the highest scholastic average in didactic study.

VICTOR HARRY KAYLARIAN

THE BELLE B. AND ARTHUR M. FLACK MEMORIAL AWARD
Awarded by the children of Dean and Mrs. Flack, upon recommendation of the Department of Internal Medicine, to that member of the graduating class who has been selected as most proficient in the practice of Internal Medicine:

VICTOR HARRY KAYLARIAN
Honorable Mention:
FRANCIS P. SUTTER

THE JOHN H. EIMERBRINK, D.O., MEMORIAL AWARD
Awarded to that member of the graduating class who in the opinion of the members of the Department of Osteopathic Principles and Practice has shown exceptional ability in Osteopathic Therapeutics. Awarded by Mrs. Eimerbrink and several of Dr. Eimerbrink's intimate professional associates:

RONALD GENE KLUDO
SIGMA ALPHA OMICRON
A Gold Key and Certificate are awarded to those graduates meeting the requirements of the Sigma Alpha Omicron Honorary Society. Election is based on maintenance of high scholarship in didactic work:

MILES ALLEN BRUMBERG
THOMAS MARK CAMPBELL
EDWARD JOSEPH CUMBO
BARRY CRAIG HOLMS
VICTOR HARRY KAYLARIAN
EDWARD ELI PACKER

THE WILBUR P. LUTZ, D.O., MEMORIAL AWARD
Awarded upon recommendation of the Department of Internal Medicine, to that member of the graduating class who has been selected as the most proficient in Physical Diagnosis:

MILES ALLEN BRUMBERG
Honorable Mention:
ROBERT DONALD BRIGLIA

SIGMA SIGMA PHI
National Honorary Osteopathic Fraternity
Members Elected from the Class of 1976

RALPH EMMERT ALDINGER, JR.
PETER ANTHONY ARCURI
JAMES H. BLACKBURN
MILES ALLEN BRUMBERG
THOMAS MARK CAMPBELL
EDWARD JOSEPH CUMBO
JOHN CHARLES EISLEY
JOHN MARTIN FLINCHBAUGH
GLENN EDWARD HAAS
BARRY CRAIG HOLMS
VICTOR HARRY KAYLARIAN
MICHAEL JOHN KRUG
THOMAS PAUL KUNKLE
ROGER FRANCIS O'CONNOR
EDWARD ELI PACKER
THOMAS DONALD PIEPSZAK
MICHAEL FRANCIS POLISE
TIMOTHY RICHARD YOUNG

THE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION AWARD
Awarded by the Alumni Association of Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine to that member of the graduating class who has been selected because of the high calibre of the performance of his professional duties in the hospitals and out-patient services:

WILLIAM RONALD HENWOOD
THE CLASS OF 1976
And The Hospitals Where They Will Intern

HARLAN E. ABBOTT, II, Rebersburg, Pa.
Harrisburg Osteopathic Hospital
Harrisburg, Pa.

VINCENT J. ACAMPORA, Philadelphia
Zieger-Botsford Hospital
Farmington, Mich.

RALPH E. ALDINGER, JR., Elizabethtown, Pa.
Community General Osteopathic Hospital
Harrisburg, Pa.

ROLAND H. ALLARD, Pawtucket, R. I.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

LAWRENCE J. ANASTASI, Drexel Hill, Pa.
J. F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital
Stratford, N. J.

JOSEPH A. ANDRIS, Philadelphia
Riverside Hospital
Wilmington, Del.

PETER A. ARCURI, Easton, Pa.
J. K. Kennedy Memorial Hospital
Stratford, N. J.

WILLIAM H. AYERS, JR., Drexel Hill, Pa.
Mercy Catholic Medical Center
Darby, Pa.

VINCENT E. BALDINO, Philadelphia
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

JAMES P. BARBER, Erie, Pa.
Metropolitan Hospital

SCOTT G. BARNES, York, Pa.
Community General Osteopathic Hospital
Harrisburg, Pa.

JOSEPH A. BATTAGLIA, Havertown, Pa.
Riverside Hospital
Wilmington, Del.

NEIL J. BELGIANO, Albany, N. Y.
Zieger-Botsford Hospital
Farmington, Mich.

JOHN H. BELLEW, Philadelphia
Abington Memorial Hospital
Abington, Pa.

STEVEN BERNHARD, Hewlett, N. Y.
Leroy Hospital
New York, N. Y.

ROBERT H. BIGGS, Bethlehem, Pa.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

JAMES R. BILLAK, Farrell, Pa.
Riverside Hospital
Wilmington, Del.

SPENCE R. BISBING, Allentown; Pa.
Osteopathic Hospital of Maine
Portland, Me.

SAMUEL J. BLACK, Kittanning, Pa.
Atlantic City Medical Center
Atlantic City, N. J.

JAMES H. BLACKBURN, Collingdale, Pa.
Cleveland Clinic Foundation
Cleveland, Ohio

ANDREW G. BONGIOVANNI, Philadelphia
Graduate Hospital

ROBERT I. BOORSTEIN, Cherry Hill, N. J.
Zieger-Botsford Hospital
Farmington, Mich.

MICHAEL H. BOREK, Lindenwald, N. J.
J. F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital
Stratford, N. J.

ROBERT D. BRIGLIA, Phillipsburg, N. J.
Allentown Osteopathic Hospital
Allentown, Pa.

MILES A. BRUMBERG, Colonia, N. J.
Cherry Hill Medical Center
Cherry Hill, N. J.

DANIEL P. CAMPANINI, Reynoldsville, Pa.
Community General Osteopathic Hospital
Harrisburg, Pa.

THOMAS M. CAMPBELL, Exeter, Pa.
United Health and Hospital Services
Wilkes-Barre, Pa.

GREGORY W. CHAPMAN, Egg Harbor, N. J.
J. F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital
Stratford, N. J.

RICHARD A. CHARLES, Stratford, N. J.
Harrisburg General Hospital
Harrisburg, Pa.

JOANNE C. CHIENNICI, Gwynedd Valley, Pa.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

KENNETH P. CICUTO, Lowellville, Ohio
Osteopathic Hospital of Maine
Portland, Me.

JOHN S. CLAYTON, West Chester, Pa.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

NEIL M. COHEN, Huntingdon Valley, Pa.
Delaware Valley Hospital
Bristol, Pa.

RICHARD D. COHEN, Philadelphia
Cherry Hill Medical Center
Cherry Hill, N. J.

DAVID V. CONDOLUCI, Rochester, N. Y.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

MICHAEL S. CONE, Shamokin, Pa.
Doctors Osteopathic Hospital
Erie, Pa.

GERALD M. CREED, Philadelphia
Metropolitan Hospital

EDWARD J. CUMBO, Pittston, Pa.
Delaware Valley Hospital
Bristol, Pa.

ANDREW J. CUTTONE, Levittown, Pa.
Delaware Valley Hospital
Bristol, Pa.

JACK A. DANTON, Philadelphia
Parkview Hospital

CHARLES R. DARLINGTON, JR., Coatesville, Pa.
Mercy Catholic Medical Center
Darby, Pa.

THOMAS G. DEL GIORNO, JR., Philadelphia
J. F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital
Stratford, N. J.

CARL M. DESIDERIO, West Orange, N. J.
Memorial General Hospital
Union, N. J.

N. CHARLES DIAKON, Cranford, N. J.
Metropolitan Hospital

FRANK P. DICHARA, South Orange, N. J.
Zieger-Botsford Hospital
Farmington, Mich.

DANTE J. DIMARZIO, JR., Norristown, Pa.
Bryn Mawr Hospital
Bryn Mawr, Pa.

JAMES K. DITCHKUS, Island Heights, N. J.
Memorial General Hospital
Union, N. J.

WALTER S. DOUBISHAK, Springfield, N. J.
Memorial General Hospital
Union, N. J.
FRANK P. DOMBKOSKI, Philadelphia
U. S. Public Health Service Hospital
Staten Island, N. Y.

FRANCIS I. DONAHUE, Cheltenham, Pa.
Univ. of Southern California Medical Center
Los Angeles, Calif.

Doctors Hospital
Columbus, Ohio

BARBARA D. DOUGHERTY, Voorhees, N. J.
J. F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital
Stratford, N. J.

MICHAEL DUDNICK, Philadelphia
Malcolm Grow U.S.A.F. Medical Center
Washington, D. C.

GERARD M. DUNN, JR., Warwick, R. I.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

JOEL B. EDELSTEIN, Philadelphia
Zieger-Botsford Hospital
Farmington, Md.

DANIEL EINHORN, Philadelphia
Chicago Osteopathic Hospital
Chicago, Ill.

THEODORE S. EISENBERG, Philadelphia
Osteopathic General Hospital
North Miami Beach, Fla.

JOHN C. EISLEY, Bethel Park, Pa.
Zieger-Botsford Hospital
Farmington, Mich.

TRUDIE J. ELLENBERGER, Annville, Pa.
Lancaster Osteopathic Hospital
Lancaster, Pa.

Tri-County Hospital
Springfield, Pa.

JOHN E. FARMER, Lancaster, Pa.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

CHARLES M. FEICHT, JR., Punxsutawney, Pa.
Osteopathic Hospital of Maine
Portland, Me.

STEPHEN N. FINBERG, Philadelphia
Metropolitan Hospital

JOHN M. FLINCHBAUGH, York, Pa.
Washington Memorial Hospital
Turnersville, N. J.

RAYMOND P. FLOWERS, III, Plantation, Fla.
Flint Osteopathic Hospital
Flint, Mich.

R. MICHAEL GALLAGHER, Philadelphia
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

WAYNE L. GARRETT, Aston Township, Pa.
Tripler Army Medical Center
Honolulu, Hawaii

REV. D. DOUGLAS GILBERT, Middleport, N. Y.
Doctors Osteopathic Hospital
Erie, Pa.

JOHN H. GILMOUR, Seattle, Wash.
Washington Memorial Hospital
Turnersville, N. J.

DOREEN GORING, Bradford, Yorkshire, England
Allentown Osteopathic Hospital
Allentown, Pa.

JOSEPH N. GRIZZANTI, Totowa, N. J.
Martindale Medical Center
Newark, N. J.

CHARLES R. GRUBB, Philadelphia
Delaware Valley Hospital
Bristol, Pa.

FRANK H. GUINN, Marlton, N. J.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

GLENN E. HAAS, Philadelphia
Delaware Valley Hospital
Bristol, Pa.

SUSAN H. HAMMAN, Harrisburg, Pa.
Doctors Hospital, Columbus, Ohio

CHRISTOPHER M. HASBACH, Pittsburgh, Pa.
Lancaster Osteopathic Hospital
Lancaster, Pa.

WILLIAM R. HENWOOD, Bethel Park, Pa.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

REX A. HERBERT, Harrisburg, Pa.
Community General Osteopathic Hospital
Harrisburg, Pa.

ROBERT K. METZ, Frostburg, Md.
Tri-County Hospital
Springfield, Pa.

ROBERT K. HIPPERT, Allentown, Pa.
Allentown Osteopathic Hospital
Allentown, Pa.

BARRY C. HOLMS, Spokane, Wash.
Suburban General Hospital
Norristown, Pa.

NEIL A. JACOBSON, Pompton Plains, N. J.
Memorial General Hospital
Union, N. J.

EDWARD E. JANUS, New Castle, Pa.
Doctors Hospital
Erie, Pa.

Zieger-Botsford Hospital
Farmington, Mich.

BARRY J. KAPLAN, Vineland, N. J.
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

FRANCIS J. KARSH, Philadelphia
Parkview Hospital

JEFFREY L. KAUFMAN, Abington, Pa.
Doctors Hospital
Columbus, Ohio

VICTOR H. KAYLARIAN, Rumford, R. I.
Zieger-Botsford Hospital
Farmington, Mich.

MARK R. KEELEY, Hatboro, Pa.
Albert Einstein Medical Center

WALTER F. KELLER, Philadelphia
Osteopathic Hospital of Maine
Portland, Me.

PATRICK C. KELLY, Monongahela, Pa.
Shadyside Hospital
Pittsburgh, Pa.

WILLIAM A. KEOGH, Philadelphia
Mercy Catholic Medical Center
Darby, Pa.

RONALD G. KLUDO, Beaver Falls, Pa.
Doctors Hospital
Erie, Pa.

JAMES A. KNIGHT, Cranbury, N. J.
Wm. Beaumont Army Medical Center
El Paso, Texas

MITCHELL B. KRAUSE, Philadelphia
Metropolitan Hospital

CAROLE C. KREMER, Philadelphia
Riverside Osteopathic Hospital
Trenton, Mich.

LARRY E. KREVOLIN, Philadelphia
Mercy Catholic Medical Center
Darby, Pa.

MICHAEL J. KRUG, Philadelphia
Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine

ANDREW L. KULIK, Trumbauersville, Pa.
Delaware Valley Hospital
Bristol, Pa.

THOMAS P. KUNKLE, New Cumberland, Pa.
Tri-County Hospital
Springfield, Pa.

DAVID W. LAW, Howell, Mich.
J. F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital
Stratford, N. J.

E. DALE LEE, Mt. Bethel, Pa.
Allentown Osteopathic Hospital
Allentown, Pa.
Faculty Appointments

July 1976

Department of Anesthesiology:
- Michael I. Miller, D.O., Instructor Whole Time
- Philip Bell, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time
- Mario Salamone, D.O., Supervisor, 48th St. H.C.C. Whole Time

Department of General Practice:
- Philip Bell, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time
- Michael Centrella, D.O., Instructor Whole Time
- F. Richard Darrow, D.O., Assistant Professor Whole Time
- Pat Lannutti, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time
- Walter Comisky, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time
- Philip Pantle, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time

Department of Internal Medicine:
- John Simelaro, D.O., Assistant Professor, Chairman Division of Respiratory Medicine Whole Time
- F. Richard Darrow, D.O., Assistant Professor Whole Time
- Pat Lannutti, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time
- Walter Comisky, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time
- Philip Pantle, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time

Department of Neurology and Psychiatry:
- George H. Guest, D.O., Professor and Chairman Whole Time
- John Yardumian, D.O., Assistant Professor Whole Time

Department of Osteopathic Principles and Practice:
- Alexander S. Nicholas, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time

Department of Pediatrics:
- Robert Berger, D.O., Assistant Professor Whole Time

Department of Radiology:
- Marshall Carlin, D.O., Assistant Professor Whole Time
- Richard M. Purse, D.O., Assistant Professor Whole Time

Department of Surgery:
- Bernard J. Amster, D.O., Clinical Instructor Part Time
Laporte Medical Center

Dr. James Witt, director, and the Laporte Medical Center in Sullivan County, Pa., have become an important part of the community since its founding in 1970.

Recently, (April) the Sullivan Review, weekly newspaper of the county, ran this news item, "With all the aches and sprains around, isn't it nice to have the Laporte Medical Center?"

Also this spring, under Dr. Witt's direction, a course for emergency medical technicians was offered to residents of Sullivan County. Forty-one men and women participated in 72 hours of classroom instruction and practice, coupled with 10 hours of work in a hospital emergency room. Instructors for the course were Dr. Witt and the medical staff of the health care center. The course was sponsored by the American Heart Association which tested the students at the end of the instructional phase. After certification the new EMT's can care for injured or ill patients either as members of one of the County's ambulance teams or as private individuals.

The class extended its gratitude to Dr. Witt by taking an ad in the Sullivan Review, which read

The Sullivan County Emergency Medical Technician class extends its sincere thanks to Dr. James Witt and the doctors of Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine at the Laporte Medical Center. Your patient help is deeply appreciated.

Dr. Witt has also been instrumental in the development of the Sullivan County Dental Clinic which opened in May. Aided by a grant from the Appalachian Regional Commission and local contributions, the clinic will offer basic dental health services and will coordinate its activities with the Laporte Medical Center. The project is the result of the cooperation of many individuals and organizations including the Sullivan County Commissioners, the Sullivan County Chamber of Commerce and PCOM among many others. An open house and dedication of the clinic was planned for June 20.

Hospital Week Program

PCOM conducted a week-long screening program for community and area residents of its hospital and health care centers during National Hospital Week, May 9-15. The screening program was held in conjunction with the national program to detect high blood pressure (Blood Pressure Month in May) and the theme of National Hospital Week "Healthy Birthday, America."

Free screenings were offered in the hospital lobby and in nine different locations in the areas of the hospital and health care centers. Teams of doctors and nurses were stationed daily at various places of business along City Avenue including department stores, radio and TV stations and industrial plazas. In the four communities of PCOM's health care centers—North and West Philadelphia, Center City and Roxborough—banks, food markets and pharmacies loaned their premises for screenings.

A total of 3,120 screenings were taken during the week with 34% referred to their personal physicians for high readings.

PCOM Participates in Emergency Courses

John Becher, D.O., '70, director of emergency room services at PCOM's Hospital, served as course coordinator of the College's participation in a training program for emergency physicians. The program, held in April, was co-sponsored by the College of Physicians of Philadelphia and the six medical schools in the city. This is the first year that PCOM has been a participant. Dr. Becher has been a member of the American College of Emergency Physicians since 1972 and recently became a charter member of the newly-formed American College of Osteopathic Emergency Physicians.

The three-week course consisted of morning didactic sessions at the College of Physicians and afternoon sessions of learning experiences presented at the emergency departments of the sponsoring hospitals.

Members of the faculty of the didactic sessions included Robert H. Jama, D.O., '69, director of the shock and trauma unit, who spoke on "Circulatory Failure and

The practice-oriented sessions presented at PCOM’s Hospital and the anatomy laboratory at 48th st. included sessions on chest tube techniques by Dr. Jama; blood gas by John Similaro, D.O., ’71, chairman of the division of respiratory medicine; technique for Swann-ganz catheter by Wayne Hudson, D.O., surgical resident. Isadore Lieberman, D.O., ’47, professor and chairman of the professor, demonstrated endotracheal intubation. John R. Alway, D.O., professor and chairman of the ENT department and Ronald Reinhard, D.O., resident, demonstrated tracheotomy techniques in ENT emergencies. Internal cardiac massage techniques were shown by Dr. Jama and Vincent T. Cipolla, D.O., ’46, professor and chairman of the department of anatomy. Philip Diebert, D.O., ’73, resident in internal medicine, discussed cardiac pacemakers, and Henry D’Alonzo, D.O., ’51, assistant professor of surgery, department of anesthesiology and Michael Gabin, D.O., assistant demonstrated the techniques of transvenous cardiac pacemaker. Robert L. Meals, D.O., ’56, professor and chairman of the department of radiology and Richard M. Purse, D.O., ’72, fourth-year resident, discussed the evaluation and interpretation of x-rays of emergency room patients with cases from the teaching files.

Both osteopathic and allopathic physicians enrolled in the course which was limited to 30 physicians currently in emergency medicine.

### NEWS FROM THE COLLEGE

**AOA President Visits PCOM**

Earl A. Gabriel, D.O., ’54, president of the American Osteopathic Association, challenged PCOM students during his official visit to the College on May 10. “You are the AOA,” he told an audience of first and second year students. “The Association looks to you, the student, the physician of the future, for guidance and leadership.”

Dr. Gabriel, who was inaugurated president of the AOA last July, drove from Allentown to Philadelphia in early morning to address an 8 a.m. assembly. He presented an overview of the organization and its past, present and future areas of involvement.

Extending the challenge, Dr. Gabriel quoted Charles Kettering, the inventor, who said, “Nothing ever built rose to touch the skies unless some men dreamed that it should, believed that it could and willed that it must.”

The AOA brought the osteopathic profession to where it is today, said Dr. Gabriel and with the phenomenal growth and unprecedented recognition of osteopathic medicine come more responsibilities to the student, intern, resident and practicing physician.

The president’s review of AOA involvement areas included national health insurance, malpractice, federal regulations, continuing medical education and certificate of need legislation.

He discussed his own report to Congress and the Institute of Medicine on primary care and the osteopathic development of family practice.

“We have a proven educational system that can be a model for the entire nation,” he said.

He cited as an example the Javitz report on all medical schools in which Senator Jacob Javitz of New York stated in the Congressional Record,
"If there is any doubt that a medical student's curricula affects the career goals of a physician, the schools of osteopathy offer a significant avenue of investigation. Internships are required of all graduates and residencies in family practice are beginning to develop. But the most important point is the amount of primary and ambulatory care given in the clinical curricula. The Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine, for example, required 42 weeks of such clinical experience of all students. This is far beyond what the average medical school would require and considerably more ambulatory experience than is required by the newest, most revolutionary medical schools."

During his travels in the last 21 months, as president-elect and as president, Dr. Gabriel has seen more interest and more vitality in the osteopathic profession than ever before.

He concluded, "I have no doubts as to where we're going. We are stronger than we've ever been, more recognized than we've ever been. Therefore we have more responsibilities and the AOA looks to you."

BicentenniaI Visitors

PCOM's president is telling friends about the pleasant surprise he had one evening in June. As Dr. Rowland was leaving his office he met Dr. and Mrs. Louis J. Manley of Glenville, West Virginia, who were visiting Philadelphia and were taking a tour of the campus. Dr. Manley, who is a graduate of Des Moines College of Osteopathic Medicine and professor of anatomy at West Virginia School of Osteopathic Medicine, had PCOM's Bicentennial booklet in hand and expressed his pleasure in receiving it.

Dr. Rowland; in turn, was delighted that physicians and their families were taking advantage of his invitation to all D.O.'s in the U.S. to see PCOM when visiting Philadelphia.

Tours of the College are conducted every Friday from 2 to 5 p.m. by members of the Women's Guild and Students' Wives Auxiliary. Advance notice is required for tours on days other than Friday and should be given to the public relations department.

Nurses Alumnae Meet

Members of the Nurses Alum­nae Association of PCOM attends the annual banquet on April 24 at Williamson's Restaurant in Bala Cynwyd. Reunions of the 40th anniversary and the silver jubilee classes were well attended with seven from each class participating.

Members of the Class of 1936 who attended the reunion, were, Frances Apare Andrews, Phoenixville, Pa.; Alberta Allen Tibbetts, Wilmington, Del.; Dorothy Evans Pasco, Clearwater, Fla.; Dorothy Gaskill Mason, Newtown Square, Pa.; Priscilla Moore Fassett, Moorestown, N.J.; Gladys Holland Gray, Broomall, Pa.; Elsie Weisel Gillinder, Lansdale, Pa.

New Benefits Program

PCOM's board of trustees has approved a new group benefits package and pension plan for its faculty, professional staff and employees not covered by a bargaining agreement.

In his announcement of the program, Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, Jr., PCOM's president, said, "I am most pleased that this program has reached fruition. Our board of trustees feels very strongly that a superior benefits program will enable us to attract and retain the best possible employees."

The cost of the benefit program and pension plan is paid for by PCOM with no faculty or employee contribution required. The new package includes group life insurance, accidental death and dis­memberment benefits, disability income coverage, Blue Cross, Blue Shield, dental, prescription drug, a comprehensive major plan and a pension plan.

The Distinguished Professors Emeriti

Dr. Mercer

Five distinguished professors announced their retirements this year. Dr. Sherwood R. Mercer, vice president for educational affairs (who will remain on the faculty as professor of History of Medicine and Osteopathy); Paul T. Lloyd, D.O., director of the division of oncology and former chairman of the department of radiology; Edwin H. Cressman, D.O., professor of anatomy and dermatology and syphilology; A. Aline Swift, D.O., professor of radiology; F. Munro Purse, D.O., clinical professor of pediatrics.

Their combined years on the faculty total 191. Their contributions to the educational experiences of the students, to the growth of PCOM and to its future are immeasurable.

Standing ovations greeted each professor at the Commencement Dinner as Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, Jr., president, presented them with certificates of honor. The president also expressed his personal regret at their retirements and cited outstanding service and impressive loyalty to PCOM as hallmarks of their careers.

Vice President For Educational Affairs

Sherwood R. Mercer, A.B., A.M., LL.D. (hon.) has not only been responsible for much of the internal academic organization of PCOM but was also heavily involved in the planning and development of the City Avenue campus.

A Connecticut Yankee, Sherwood Mercer was born in Manchester, Conn. and educated in the local public schools. He holds A.B. and A.M. degrees from Wesleyan University, Middletown, Conn., plus the honorary degree of doctor of laws.

The Wishbone Tradition

For eight years, Dr. and Mrs. Mercer have presented sterling silver wishbone pins to the spouses of the graduating students. The idea was originated by the wife of a Tulsa, Oklahoma osteopathic physician. In an address to PCOM Students' Wives in 1968, Mrs. James F. Routsong, president of the AOA Auxiliary, said that physician's wives need three things to withstand the effects of medical school on their families, a backbone, a funny bone and a wishbone.

Rowena and Sherwood Mercer decided that students' wives and husbands already had plenty of backbone and funny bone after four years, so they would provide the wishbone as a "symbol of hope to reach their material and spiritual goals and good wishes for the future." And at each Commencement Dinner since 1968, the Mercers at their own expense, present a sterling silver pin in the shape of a wishbone to the wives and, since 1973, silver wishbone tie tacks to the husbands. To date they have presented nearly 700 pins, including 85 pins and six tie tacs to the Class of 1976.

The 1976 presentation was a nostalgic one since it was the last by the Mercers. "It has always been a very happy arrangement for Mrs. Mercer and myself," said the retiring vice president of educational affairs.

Dr. and Mrs. Mercer present the wishbone pins at the 1976 Commencement Dinner
of laws from Philadelphia College of Textiles and Science.

After graduating from Wesleyan, he attended Yale and Harvard Universities. At Harvard he served as secretary of the Committee on General Education in a Free Society. This committee’s report served as a basis for restructuring the first two years of Harvard’s curriculum. He also served as consultant in higher education to the state of Connecticut.

In 1946, Dr. Mercer was appointed dean of faculty at Muhlenberg College in Allentown, Pa., a post he held for eight years. He was named dean of PCOM in 1954 and served in this position for 15 years before being appointed vice president for educational affairs.

To both positions at PCOM he brought an interest in educational excellence, a concern for students and an ability to coordinate the world of education and the world of medicine. He developed the course in History of Medicine and Osteopathy, which he now teaches; added significance to collegiate events and a warm dimension to the formality of Commencement ceremonies.

His influence in the planning of the City Avenue campus was notable. With Dr. Charles Boehm, former assistant to the president, Dr. Mercer made a study of medical schools and developed concepts of fluid classrooms for flexibility. Evans Hall’s adaptability to future educational concepts is largely due to Sherwood Mercer.

In addition to his role as educator, Dr. Mercer was interested in governmental activity in health care delivery systems and often served as PCOM’s coordinator of government programs. He has given distinguished service to many boards and committees, among them: the AOA’s Committee on Allied Health Education, and the board of directors of the United Health Services of Phila., the Greater Delaware Valley Regional Medical Program and the University City Science Center.

His position in the mainstream of higher education led to his interest and activity in the development of the American Association of Colleges of Osteopathic Medicine, where he served as first chairman of the Council of Deans. He was elected president of the AACOM Board of Governors in 1974, serving a one-year term.

Last January he was honored at the AACOM banquet in New Orleans. Among many plaudits, he was called educator, scholar, colleague and Renaissance man. To this PCOM can add proponent of the advancement of the osteopathic profession, visionary, planner and loyal friend.

Pioneer and Leader in Radiology

Paul Turner Lloyd, D.O., PCOM 1923, is an eminent radiologist, pioneer and prominent leader in the specialty and respected educator. He retires after 52 years on the faculty, the longest service in the College’s history. Fifty of those years were spent on the faculty of the department of radiology—a department which he organized in 1926 and guided through 36 successful years.

Dr. Lloyd’s career was dedicated to establishing solid foundations for the educational process. In 1928 he recognized the need of a residency training program in radiology and set about to establish it. It was the first in the osteopathic profession and set the pattern for others to follow. His graduates carried Lloyd techniques and learning to all areas of the United States.

In 1963, 24 practicing radiologists—two-thirds of the 36 alumni who had studied under Dr. Lloyd—came to Philadelphia to present an oil portrait of their mentor to PCOM. The words of Dr. Charles Karibo, ‘30, Detroit, Michigan, reflected the respect of his students.

“We have had a great and honorable heritage given us,” he said, “in that we received both our didactic and early clinical training in radiology under Dr. Lloyd’s conscientious and capable guidance . . . he has continued unselfishly to counsel us and helped direct our destinies. We respect him as an educator, an eminent radiologist, a fine humanitarian . . . (and) as a friend.”

In addition to practicing radiology and teaching, Dr. Lloyd served his profession in many capacities. From an incredibly long list of memberships and achievements, these are a few: he served as a founding member of the American Osteopathic Board of Radiology; as founding mem-
ber and president of the American Osteopathic College of Radiology; as a trustee to the AOA; as chairman of the Bureau of Hospitals of the AOA; as AOA representative to the Pan American Scientific Congress and to the White House Child Health and Welfare Conference; as member of the International Cancer Congress; as member of the International Congress of Radiology.

He has been actively associated with the American Cancer Society for 35 years and was probably the first D.O. elected to the board of directors. In 1950 he was appointed by Governor James Duff as a member of the Civil Defense Cadre and organized a regional civic defense course at PCOM. Also in the 50's, Dr. Lloyd organized PCOM's Cancer Teaching Program and Tumor Conference. The Well Breast Clinic that he established at 48th St. was the first such clinic in Philadelphia.

In 1962 Dr. Lloyd retired as chairman of the department of radiology and was appointed professor emeritus. He would remain as consultant for many years.

The years of this retirement consisted of; 1963, an appointment to organize an office of alumni and professional affairs and serve as its director; 1964, an appointment as director of research; 1966, an appointment as director of cancer education which later became the division of oncology. This post he held until his second retirement this June.

He has maintained an active interest in the Alumni Association and has served as its historian for many years. In fact, Paul Lloyd is a major resource of PCOM history with his keen memory of the past and collection of memorabilia.

Dr. Lloyd's contributions to his profession have not gone unnoticed. PCOM awarded the distinguished professor of radiology its highest award in 1964—the O.J. Snyder Memorial Medal for leadership and service to the College and to the osteopathic profession. His citation read in part, "Dr. Lloyd is the premier radiologist of the osteopathic profession; he is among the select few who lead that specialty in all schools of practice throughout the world."

In 1971, he was honored by the faculty and professional staff as "astute clinician, patient teacher, esteemed professor and loyal friend." This August, he will be honored at a testimonial dinner and lecture program in Hershey, Pa. on the occasion of the 50th anniversary of PCOM's department of radiology. This department is itself a tribute to its founder as are the distinguished radiologists who learned from Paul T. Lloyd and are teaching future radiologists.

Educator, Clinician, Administrator

Edwin H. Cressman, D.O. graduated from PCOM in 1926, served his internship at the Hospitals of PCOM and was appointed to the faculty in 1927. Since that date he has served his College with quiet excellence and scholastic serenity.

He has taught dermatology and syphilology since 1927, starting as an instructor and advancing to professor and chairman of that department in 1936. He has also taught microanatomy continuously since 1927 and was appointed full professor of anatomy in 1957. In addition he taught acute infectious diseases and, at various times, other subjects on a substitute basis. He won the admiration and respect of all his students for the high quality of his teaching and the organization and clarity of his lectures.

Dr. Cressman has been a stalwart of PCOM during its formative years, steadfastly serving whenever he was needed. At one period of the College's growth, in the words of a colleague, "he carried the histology section single handedly."

Respected by his colleagues for his wisdom and judgment, Dr. Cressman was asked to serve on the "Dean's Committee" which administered the College during the 1950's when there was no single dean. His scholarly influence is reflected in the quality of curricula of that period.

Dr. Cressman is board certified in dermatology and has maintained a clinical practice in his specialty. After his retirement as chairman of the department of dermatology and syphilology in 1971, he continued in an active teaching role until this June. He has been a popular speaker on dermatology at national, state and local osteopathic meetings.

Aware of his contributions to his College and to his profession, PCOM presented him with the O.J. Snyder Memorial Medal in 1968.

Pediatrician, Teacher, Community Leader

F. Munro Purse, D.O., (PCOM 1933), has spent 42 years in the practice and teaching of pediatrics. Highly respected for the
practicality of his teaching, Dr. Purse has taught third and fourth year classes since 1933; nurses for the past five years; post-graduate classes since 1933 and clinical presentation since his appointment in 1934. He organized the pediatric out-patient clinic at 48th St. in 1966 and directed its activities. His stressing of practical office pediatrics was admired and appreciated by all of his students.

Dr. Purse was appointed clinical professor of pediatrics in 1967. He is a fellow and one of the original members of the American College of Osteopathic Pediatricians. In great demand as a speaker, the eminent pediatrician has also published many articles in pediatric magazines; is the author of a published textbook "Holding Techniques", 1968, and contributing author to the book "Osteopathic Medicine" published in 1969. He has completed a clinical study on the evaluation of osteopathic manipulative therapy in acute infectious diseases in children.

In addition to maintaining a successful pediatric practice for more than 40 years, first in Narberth and later in Wynnewood, Dr. Purse was actively involved with his community. To name just a few of his civic activities, he served on the Executive Committee of the Boy Scouts of America; as a 39-year member and past president of the Bala-Cynwyd-Narberth Rotary Club and as District Governor of Rotary International, unanimously elected by District 745.

He also served as pediatric consultant to the National Board of Examiners since 1966; consultant to the Rheumatic Fever Committee of the Pa. Heart Association since 1966 and as editorial consultant to the AOA in 1972.

Dr. Purse, a dedicated physician and teacher, has earned the respect of his College, his profession and his community throughout his professional career.

### Nurse, Physician, Officer, Teacher

A. Aline Swift, D.O., (PCOM 1934) has devoted 26 years to PCOM’s faculty as practicing radiologist and educator. She has also served as vice chairman of the department of radiology and a secretary to the professional staff.

Dr. Swift comes from a family of osteopathic physicians—her father and mother were D.O.’s and younger brother also a D.O. directs the emergency services at Lancaster Osteopathic Hospital. She entered the health care delivery system as a nurse serving for time at 48th St. She became a member of the first class to matriculate at 48th St. and spent 8 years as a general practitioner after graduation. In 1941 she attempted to enter the armed forces as a physician. But osteopathic physicians were not allowed in the medical corps during World War II. So Dr. Swift entered the Navy Nurse Corps. She advanced from Ensign to Lt. Commander and saw duty in Virginia, California and Hawaii during the War years. A staunch patriot today, Dr. Swift initiated the installation of the flagpole at PCOM and donated the first flag.

Duty in various hospitals had intensified an interest in radiology and following the war she undertook a three-year radiology residency under Dr. Lloyd. She was appointed to the faculty in 1950 and named vice chairman and associate professor in 1957. Dr. Swift is certified by the American Osteopathic College of Radiologists and served as attending radiologist at the Hospital of PCOM. She is considered an expert in mammographic interpretation of lesions of the breast.

The genial Dr. Swift has preferred to work directly with patients—she surmises it’s the nurse in her coming out—although she is found wherever there is a need, in both the diagnostic and therapeutic areas of the department of radiology.

She has been heavily involved in the Cancer Training Program, and as consultant to other departments and in conferences with students, interns and residents. Although appointed professor emeritus in 1975, Dr. Swift continued to lecture occasionally. A respected member of her profession, she has given full measure of loyalty to her college, to her students and to osteopathic medicine.
When Ronald R. Blanck, D.O., '67, finished his internship at Lancaster Osteopathic Hospital, the Army drafted him and sent him to Vietnam and later to Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, as a fellow in infectious diseases at the Army Medical Research Unit.

But today's Army is sending Dr. Blanck to Bethesda, Maryland—as assistant dean for student affairs at the new Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences. The 34-year old Dr. Blanck, now a lieutenant colonel, has also been appointed associate professor of medicine at the school. His reaction: "I'm just delighted."

As assistant dean for student affairs, Dr. Blanck will be a "den mother" of sorts, the main point of contact between the students and the school. Both the registrar and admissions offices will report to him.

As associate professor, he is responsible for developing an "Introduction to Clinical Medicine" course, a task which he says is currently taking up most of his time.

"We intend to introduce the students to patients very early," Dr. Blanck says, "like on day one." The two-year course, consisting of approximately 160 hours per year, will meet one or two afternoons a week.

First, the students will observe patient care, do some initial interviews, and give physical exams. They will progress to problem identification, problem solving and decision analysis.

"Our goal in all of this," says Dr. Blanck, "is first of all to give the student the basic skills necessary to go into the clinical years. And secondly, to make the student a patient-oriented physician—to introduce him to the patient before we go to diseases, so he is not as disease-oriented."

The course will also try to correlate the students' practical and theoretical knowledge. For example, says Dr. Blanck, "We will try to do the normal physical examination the same time as the students learn normal anatomy."

The university, a four-year medical school, will accept students from the three armed services and from the public health service. Students will be commissioned either as second lieutenants or ensigns, and will receive regular pay during their schooling. There is no charge for their education, books or equipment. Graduates will be obligated to serve seven years on active duty, and two more years if their education includes a residency.

The university's first class of some 24 to 36 students will begin in September, 1976. Initially, the school will use facilities at the Armed Forces Institute of Pathology at Walter Reed Army Medical Center. Later, the school will move to a permanent site of 100 acres being prepared at the National Naval Medical Center, Bethesda, Maryland.
Clinical facilities available to the students include, the 900-bed Walter Reed Medical Center, currently being expanded to 1280 beds; the 750-bed National Naval Medical Center; and the 250-bed Malcolm Grow Air Force Center.

Dr. Blanck, who has been assistant chief, department of medicine at Walter Reed since 1974, calls his new appointment a "logical extension" of his earlier work. At Walter Reed he has conducted training programs in internal medicine and directed the intern program. He has also served on the faculty of three Washington, D.C. medical schools, Georgetown, George Washington and Howard Universities.

His clinical journal publications are primarily in the field of problems associated with drug abuse: cardiorespiratory complications, pulmonary edema from heroin, and other medical complications of drug abuse.

Dr. Blanck is a member of the American College of Physicians and is certified by the American Board of Internal Medicine.

Recipient of the Bronze Star Medal, he received two Army Commendation Medals, one earned during a year's service in Vietnam in 1969, the other while serving at the Walter Reed Army Medical Center.

Despite his new duties, Dr. Blanck will continue to see patients. "I've been able to set this up," he says, "so I can remain as full-time attending on one of the wards at Walter Reed, and I'm keeping my outpatient practice and my Ward 8 (the VIP ward) practice."

He will keep quite busy, he concedes, but says: "It's a basic 12-14 hour day, and that is what I usually do anyway."

Some day he hopes to direct a medical program at one of the Army teaching hospitals. But right now, he's busy preparing for the university's first students.

"The opportunities are superb for military doctors," he says. "We hope most of the students will want full-time careers with one of the services."

Medicine practiced at Walter Reed, he recently told Medical World News, is far more innovative than that found at most civilian medical centers. For example, his department is now testing, for incorporation into the new Walter Reed hospital, triage in the outpatient clinics (with paramedic screening by corpsmen), unit dose pharmacy in the wards, and chronic care nursing. "It's all been done at other places," he told the magazine, "but few places have done this all at once."

**Michigan Alumni Luncheon**

Among many items of business at the Alumni Luncheon of the Michigan convention in May was a unanimously passed motion "to offer a vote of confidence to Dr. Thomas M. Rowland, Jr. for the work he has done and to offer our continuing support in the future."

The luncheon was arranged by John E. P. Burns, D.O., '52, representative to the Alumni Board of Directors from the Middle West, and was attended by 21 Alumni of PCOM.

Under discussion were the annual college fund soon to be established, the number of applicants, federal and state support, faculty changes and new departments. John Weitzel '51, who celebrated his 25th reunion at the Founders Day-Alumni Weekend in February, discussed the excellent quality of education received by our students today and how impressed he is with student morale.


**Alumni Report on Florida Convention**

Two members of PCOM's Alumni Association covered the Florida State Convention which was held in Miami Beach in March. Alexander D. Xenakis, D.O., '56, Ft. Lauderdale, Fla., reported that nearly 600 osteopathic physicians from all over the United States including Alaska and Hawaii attended the sessions. Dr. Xenakis is representative to the Alumni Board of Directors from the Middle Atlantic and Southern District.

The Alumni luncheon was well attended, according to Dr. Xenakis, in spite of "a lecture-free afternoon and the glorious sunshine of Miami Beach." The luncheon featured a report on the College expansion program presented by William J. Davis, D.O., '39, a member of PCOM's Board of Trustees. Alumni applauded his report on the College's progress. During the luncheon meeting, the possibility of sending video-cassette lectures to hospitals far from medical schools or colleges was suggested.
1938
Antonio A. Vergara, D.O., Manila, P.I.—recently visited Philadelphia to see his daughter and trade reminiscences with his PCOM roommate, William L. Silverman, D.O., '38, Cherry Hill, N. J. Dr. Vergara was returning from Rome where he completed a course in Sports Medicine under a grant from the International Olympic Committee, which qualifies him for fellowship in the International Federation of Sports Medicine. A pioneer of Sports Medicine in the Philippines, Tony is a consultant to the National Sports Association of the Philippines. He is the only D.O. in the Far East.

Harry N. Kerr, D.O., Coral Gables, Fla.—was awarded a lifetime membership in the Florida Osteopathic Association upon his retirement. Dr. Kerr practiced in Florida for 35 years and was a 25-year member of the FOMA.

1946
Harold H. Finkel, Lancaster, Pa.—was honored by the board and staff of Family and Children’s Service of Lancaster in May. Dr. Finkel, who is retiring from the board received a citation for “15 years of steadfast interest in and loyal help with the programs of the agency.” He has been on the staff of Lancaster Osteopathic Hospital since 1948, chairman of the department of pediatrics since 1953 and serves on the board of directors of the hospital.

1952
Hymen Kanoff, D.O., Philadelphia, Pa.—installed as president of the Pennsylvania Osteopathic Medical Association at the association’s annual state banquet May 1 at the EROC convention, Cherry Hill. Dr. Kanoff is a general practitioner and serves as vice chief of staff at Metropolitan Hospital. As president of POMA, Dr. Kanoff will serve as chairman of the board of trustees of the medical association. He is a member of the state House of Delegates and will chair the delegation to the AOA House of Delegates meeting in July in Wash., D.C.

Also installed in offices of POMA are:

Robinson G. Fry, D.O., ’56 Allentown, Pa.—president-elect
A. Archie Feinstein, D.O., ’42, Philadelphia, Pa.—secretary-treasurer (for the 14th consecutive year)

1954
F. H. Johns, D.O., Front Royal, Va.—appointed director of anesthesia services, Warren Memorial Hospital, Front Royal, Va. Dr. Johns is a fellow of the American Osteopathic College of Anesthesiologists.

1957
Paul W. Weiss, D.O., Youngstown, O.—installed as fellow of the American College of Osteopathic Surgeons. Dr. Weiss is chairman of the department of surgery at Youngstown Osteopathic Hospital. He is a diplomate of the American Osteopathic Board of Surgery.

1959
Kirk H. Herrick, D.O., St. Charles, Mich.—elected president of the Michigan Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons. Dr. Herrick, a general practitioner, is a member of the Michigan State University’s College of Osteopathic Medicine’s Family Medicine faculty.

1962
Robert S. Maurer, D.O., Avenel, N. J.—installed as president of the N. J. Association of Osteopathic Physicians and Surgeons. Dr. Maurer is former president of the Middlesex County Osteopathic Society, served as president-elect of the state association for the past year and was a director and member of the House of Delegates. He is a general practitioner with offices in the Iselin section of Woodbridge Township.
1963
Robert G. Binder, D.O., Voorhees, N. J. —was reelected president of the medical staff of John F. Kennedy Memorial Hospital, Stratford. A general practitioner, Dr. Binder is the first medical staff chief to serve a second term since the hospital opened in 1965.

1966
Michael Nigro, D.O., Highland Park, Mich. —recently received his certification in neurology by the American Board of Neurology and Psychiatry and was appointed associate director of the Muscular Dystrophy Clinic of Southeastern Michigan.

1967
Gene W. Miller, D.O., Allentown, Pa. —was granted certification in obstetrical and gynecological surgery by the American College of Osteopathic Obstetricians and Gynecologists. Dr. Miller is a staff specialist in ob/gyn at Allentown Osteopathic Hospital.

Miles G. Newman, D.O., Elizabethtown, Pa. —received the "Outstanding Citizen" award from the Elizabethtown Moose Lodge. He is a public health officer and has served the last seven years as Lancaster County deputy coroner.

Richard A. Prant, D.O., Chicago, Ill. —co-designed a special course in cardiac assistance recently inaugurated at the Chicago College of Osteopathic Medicine's Chicago Osteopathic Hospital. Dr. Prant is assistant professor of surgery at CCOM.

1968
Joseph Kessler, D.O. and David C. DePutron, D.O., '71 were presented with the First Annual Teacher of the Year Awards by the 1976 graduating interns and residents of Zieger-Botsford Osteopathic Hospitals at a dinner honoring interns and residents. Both physicians are members of the department of internal medicine.

1971
John Yardumian, D.O., Haverford, Pa. —recently completed his residency in psychiatry at Jefferson Medical College and was appointed honorary clinical assistant to Dr. Pratt at the National Hospital, Queen Square, London, England for a six-month period beginning in May. This is an unusual appointment for a D.O. according to the Bulletin of the American College of Neurologists. Upon completion of the appointment, Dr. Yardumian will join the whole time faculty/staff of PCOM.

1973
Arthur S. Platt, D.O., Clifton, N. J. —elected chief resident in the psychiatry department of Roosevelt Hospital, New York City.

1974

1976
Aaron J. Listopad, D.O., Sharon, Pa. —opened offices in Sharon, Pa. as the only physician in a 30-mile radius in West Middlesex Borough, Hickory Township. "I’m a hometown boy who liked the area and liked the people,” said Dr. Listopad who graduated from Hickory Twp. High School and received his bachelor’s degree from Thiel College. His wife, the former Paula Amico, is from nearby Farrell, Pa. Dr. Listopad also serves as part-time emergency room doctor at Shenango Valley Osteopathic Hospital in Farrell, where he completed his internship.
Leonard H. Finkelstein, D.O., '59, associate professor of urologic surgery and chairman of the division of urology spoke on "Urethral Stenosis" at the annual convention of the West Virginia Society of Osteopathic Medicine in May. Dr. Finkelstein has been appointed POMA representative to the Physicians Advisory Committee of the Pennsylvania State Department of Health.

Leonard B. Segal, D.O., clinical assistant in surgery, has been named chairman of the department of surgery at Delaware Valley Hospital, Bristol, Pa.

Joseph A. Dieterle, D.O., '70, assistant professor of pediatrics, has been elected to the executive board of the Philadelphia Pediatric Society for a two-year term. The Society is influential in the practice of pediatrics in the Delaware Valley and is actively involved in the regionalization of pediatric care. Dr. Dieterle was also appointed to the Pennsylvania Osteopathic Medical Association Committee on Hospital Peer Review.

Robert C. Erwin, D.O., '38, chairman and professor of surgery, was awarded a certificate from Blue Shield Corporation of Pa. for 20 years of service. He also moderated a postgraduate course sponsored by the American College of Osteopathic Surgeons in Columbus, O. in May.

Mary Jane Showers, Ph.D., professor of anatomy, participated in an anatomy seminar series at the Medical School of the University of South Carolina. Her topic was "Cerebellar Agencies: A Case Study with Neuroanatomic Implications."

Vincent T. Cipolla, D.O., '46, chairman of the department of anatomy, was cited by the publication of the National Society for the Prevention of Blindness for his work and that of his associates in suggesting the value of OMT in certain eye disorders through measurements of intraocular pressure on a study group.

As the June issue of the DIGEST went to press, the PCOM family was saddened by the news of Paul J. Gebert’s death on July 4. He was 80 years old.

"Geb" had been executive director of PCOM’s Alumni Association for the past nine years. He was well known to Alumni and friends of the College for his selfless devotion to his adopted Alma Mater. A tireless worker for PCOM, he answered every letter that crossed his desk, wrote personal notes on all notices sent from the Alumni Office, planned Alumni Weekend and organized reunions.

Love and enthusiasm were the hallmarks of his tenure as execu-
tive director. His objective was always to promote financial and moral support of the College. To this he gave every measure of devotion. "Geb" added meaning to his nickname, often saying that it meant that he "Gave Every Bit" of himself and "Got Every Bit" of alumni response.

"Geb" was born in Tamaqua, Pa. and received his bachelor of arts degree from Muhlenberg College, Allentown in 1917. During World War I he served overseas in the AEF Air Corps as a second lieutenant.

From 1919 to 1939 he held several positions at the Allentown Preparatory School, including that of assistant headmaster and director of summer and evening schools. In 1939 he was appointed assistant registrar at Muhlenberg, where he later served as director of the college's adult education program, registrar and teacher of history.

In 1953 he was appointed registrar and executive secretary of the alumni association of Philadelphia College of Textiles and Science. He served there for 14 years, during which time he established and edited the college's alumni magazine.

"Geb" retired from PCTS in 1967 and hardly had a tribute to his retirement been written for the Textile Engineer, when it had to be amended to read, "Believe it or not, Geb has not retired." He had accepted an appointment to serve as executive director of the alumni association of PCOM, where his wise counsel, warm friendship, tireless energy and ability, and bright ideas will always be remembered.

In 1972 the Alpha Tau Omega Fraternity at Muhlenberg College presented "Geb" with the Claude T. Reno Alumni Achievement Award, only the 10th time the award had been given in the chapter's 91-year history. In 1976 PCOM presented him with a silver bowl with the grateful appreciation of the College and the Alumni Association.

"Geb" is survived by his wife, the former Laura Seeley; two sons, George R. and Paul D.; and three grandchildren.

Donations in his memory may be made to PCOM.

W. Nelson Hunter, D.O., '23, of Ocean City, N.J., died April 5 at his home. He was 78 and formerly lived in the Germantown section of Philadelphia. He maintained a practice in Germantown for 48 years until his retirement in 1971. Surviving are his wife, the former Mildred Tinch; a daughter, Mrs. Margaret Jane Sieken; a son, Nelson Van Order Hunter and a grandchild.

Earl H. Gedney, D.O., '26, Norristown, Pa., died May 10 at the age of 74. An osteopathic physician and surgeon, Dr. Gedney was considered a leading authority on the practice of sclerotherapy. He lectured on the subject and was a past president and trustee emeritus of the American Osteopathic Academy of Sclerotherapy. He was a member of the American College of Osteopathic Surgeons.

After graduation from PCOM and residency in surgery, Dr. Gedney established the former Gedney Osteopathic Hospital in West Philadelphia, where he practiced from 1927 to 1939. He was a member of PCOM's faculty during the 1930's, teaching anatomy, osteopathic principles and practice and surgery. In 1939 he founded the Bangor, Maine Osteopathic Hospital, where he also served as chief of surgery. In 1952 he left Maine to return to Pennsylvania and practiced in Norristown until his death.

Surviving are his wife, the former Katharine Hunt; four daughters, two sons, 12 grandchildren, six great grandchildren, a brother and sister. His brother Dewaine L. Gedney, D.O., '38 died last September 22.


Winston B. Jennings, D.O., '28, Southampton, N.Y., died on April 4 in Bradenton, Fla. He was 69. Dr. Jennings maintained a practice in Southampton for 48 years. He is survived by his wife, Marion; two daughters, a sister and three grandchildren.

W. John Field, D.O., '31, of Manchester, Conn. died March 4.

Dana A. Rowe, D.O., '35, of Limerick, Me., died on November 22, 1975.


William Colfer, '42, East Norwalk, Conn., died January 23. He was a native of Passaic, N.J. and practiced for his entire career in Norwalk. His wife Ruth survives him.


Samuel A. Blank, Elkins Park, Pa., former chairman of the board of trustees of PCOM, died on April 21. He was a retired senior partner of the law firm of Blank, Rome, Klaus & Comisky, a firm he had founded in 1946 as Blank and Rudenko. Mr. Blank was a 1929 graduate of the University of Pennsylvania Wharton School and received his law degree from Penn's law school in 1932. In 1936 and 1937, he was a member of the Pennsylvania House of Representatives. In 1963, PCOM awarded Mr. Blank an honorary degree of doctor of laws.
WELCOME BACK!

If you are a member of the class of: 1927, 32, 37, 42, 47, 52, 57, 62, 67, 72 congratulations. PCOM wants to welcome you back to celebrate your class reunion on Saturday, January 29, 1977 at the Marriott Hotel, Philadelphia as part of the Founders Day - Alumni weekend festivities.

Each reunion class will gather in their individual suites where good times, old acquaintances and refreshments will be provided.

The following graduates have already volunteered to help to get the ball rolling among their classmates:

William Weisbecker '27  Robert Maurer '62
William Wilson '32      Robert Renza '62
Archie Feinstein '42    Jack Tatom '62
William Herr '52       Vincent Santangelo '62
Leo Unger '52          Donald Asbel '67
Hyman Kanoff '52

Won't you help by contacting your classmates? If you can, please call the Alumni Office, (215) 877 - 6676.

P.S. The Class of '62 challenges any other class to have a better representation.